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ADDENDA

In 1984 the Department of Natural Resources contracted
with Joe Getty to conduct a follow-up survey of selected
historic properties on DNR lands. DNR funded the field
survey and photography but did not prepare finished copy.

The attached photocopy pages were forwarded to the

Maryland Historical Trust to supplement existing files.

211l original material and photographs remain in the possession
of the Department of Natural Resources under the supervision

of Ross Kimmel (x3771) .
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DRAFT--JERUSALEM MILL SAWMILL STRUCTURE

The 1979 survey form identifies a structure on the north
side of Jerusalem Road as a blacksmith shop. According to the
sketch ot Jerusalem Mill and the community in "A Brief History
of Jerusalem and its Mills" by (G. B. Littlepage and H. Gax this
structure js identified as the sawmill. It is a one-stery
stone structure with a rectangular plan. It has a wide gable
roof covered in asphalt shingles. The main facade of the
structurc originally had a wide-open bay that extended about
welve feet in the cemtéer of the structure. The building was
converted to residential purposes and this bay was given a
door and two windows. Another interesting feature of this
structure 1s 1its priéble purlin roof framing system with a
quqﬁﬁ—post truss.

The sawmill is located on the north side of Jerusalem
Road, approximately .1 mile west of Jericho Road. The millrace
for the mill runs within five feet ol the east wall of the sawmill.
The structure is located on a flat site directly across from the
mill.

The sawmill is constructed of rubble fieldstone covered
in stucco. The main (south)facadé consisted of a single window
and a large twelve-foot wide opening which now contains a door
and two windows as infill. The west gable end contains a door
in the portherrmmost bay and three windows with a small window

o vl
in the guable. The east gable end isAundgrground due to an
enbankment for the millrace and contains a small window in the

gable, (fFavt Td1 Ty uidetgropnd)s> The north (acade contains a




Draft--Jerusalem Sawmill Structure “A”L{?)S

single window centrally located. The interior has modern

pasetit ioms that converted the structure to residential use,
Much of the interior has been remodeled except for the roof
framing system. The roof system is a principle purlin roof
which is supported by a quefy¢ post truss. A CommonArafter

roof was then placed over the principle purlins.
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—EXCELLENT _)Ensrzmonnso . X UNALTERED XoRiGINAL SITE
—GOOD _RUINS - —ALTERED __MOVED DATE
X_FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
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Jerusalem Mill
HA-433

Located just on the Harford County side of the Little Gunpowder
Falls on Jerusalem Road, the mill building is a massive structure
built into a bank, rectangular in plan (about 60' x 36'), one
storey of heavy timber frame on a quoined stone basement of
between one and two stories. The north elevation is on the
highest ground, with one storey of rubble-laid fieldstone, one
storey of frame (board and batten) and the north slope of

the gable roof, with two ranges of gabled dormers of three bays
each. The southern elevation is similar, with the addition of

an extra storey in the stone basement, owing to the slope of the
site. Openings on the long elevation walls are more or less
arranged into three bays on each frame wall, six on the ground
level on the south which include two entrances, one entrance on
the north. The end elevations (east and west) are similar to
eacii other, with an entrance in the stone basement, two stories i:[‘
of two windows with a 1loft door between each, and a loft door

in the peak of the gable, sheltered by a slight projection of

the eave only over the door. Brick chimneys rise out of the
southeast and northwest corners of the building, through the

roof. Windows are generaly 6/6. There is a datestone west of

the entrance on the north elevation which is a circular piece

of granite inscribed 1772 - DAVID LEE and surrounded by six

: segments of dressed fieldstone enlarging the circle. The interior
appears to be mostly 19th century heavy timber framing, although
the major framing members may be much older, in particular the

2' x 2' white oak corner posts, and other posts and beams through-
out the total of five floors. All floors are unpartitioned.

Some 19th century installed mill equipment, mostly chutes and
conveyors, remain in place, but most moveable apparatus has

been removed. Stairs rise in irreqular flights from the °
south wall.

E
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PERIOD AREAS OF SlGNllil‘CANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
_PREHISTORIC ~ _ARCHEOLUGY-PREHISTORIC  __COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  __RELIGION
—1400-1499 —_ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION —LAW __SCIENCE
—1500-1539 _AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE —_SCULPTURE L
—1600-1639 X ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION _MILITARY —SOCIAUHUMANITARIAN
X41200-1799 _ART __ENGINEERING _Music _THEATER
—1800-1899 X COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY — TRANSPORTATION
_1900- —COMMUNICATIONS ZiNpDuSTRY —_POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)
—INVENTION :
SPECIFIC DATES 1772 BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

-~

The Jerusalem Mill is probably the oldest extant mlll\structure
in Harford County, possibly one of the oldest in the state.

It is the only intact representation of the early industrial
development of the Gunpowder Falls, a river which figures
prominently in the development of the state, and was once
almost literally lined with a catalogue of early industrial
operations. The Jerusalem Mill was probably among the

earliest to take advantage of the power offerd by the Gunpowder.

The mill's name derives from the 1687 patent upon which it is
located, "Jerusalem”. The ground was acquired by David Lee in
1772 (BALTO CO AL E/ 383). This year is also taken to be the
date of the mills' construction, based upon an inscribed
millstone near the entrance, "1772-David Lee”. Lee, a Quaker
from Bucks County (?) Pa., left behind a record of his success
in the 1783 Tax List which credits him with 30 acres and a
mill (at Bonds Water Mill, a currently unexplained name) and
the 1798 list which shows Lee owning 173 acres, two houses and
seven other buildings.

Besides running a flour mill, Lee manufactured gun stocks in a
small building attached to the mill, an occupation which seems
not to have troubled his Quaker conscience, and which probably
benefitted the American cause in 1776 to the same extent as
did the flour and corn meal. David Lee's mill was apparently
important enough to be noted by name on the two major maps
produced of the area at the end of the 18th century, Girffith
(1795) and Bond (1797). : )

After about forty years under David's successful managemené,
the‘mill passed by will to his son, Ralph Sackett Lee, in 1811.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EJMA]JOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Maryland Hist. Trust files inclading:

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Edwards Report

original inventory form
notes

articles

maps
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EJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

N/A

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

N/A

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY
[§1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE
John Hnedak

ORGANIZATION
Maryland Historical Trust

DATE

STREET & NUMBER

TELEPHONE

CITY OR TOWN

STATE

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was-officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 Ka,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-

ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust

The Shaw House, 21 State Circle

Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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Jerusalem Mill Page 2
Description (cont'd)

Blacksmith Shop
HA-435

A rubble-fieldstone structure of one storey with dressed coins.
There is a broadly sloping roof, ridge east and west. Of the four
irreqgularly spaced openings on the facade (south elevation), the
group cf two windows and a door appear to have been made in a

large infill patch, in an original opening wide enough to have
accomodated a large wagon. Windows and doors are randomly located
on the other four walls. Most of the walls have been covered with
a thin layer of "stucco". There are indications that the present
apperance of the structure is an "improved" version of the original
structure, which was a smaller stone building with a frame extension,
perhaps open of the forge side, all under one roof approximately
the dimensions of that which exists today.

House
HA-434

A two storey, two bay coursed rubble house under a shallow gable
roof, ridge east to west. The house is located south of the mill.
There is a massive (for the scale of this very small house) stone
chimney centered outside the west gable wall which slopes into the
wall and emerges as a brick chimney throughthe ridge of the roof.
The entrance on the north elevation is at ground level and centered.
There is a wooden shed addition at the south wall.
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Jerusalem Mill Page 2
Significance (cont'd)

The mill did no less well during this stage, producing $1,200 worth
of corn meal and $12,000 of flour in 1849, Ralph instituted the
production of kosher Passover flour for the Jewish community of
Baltimore, which was growing rapidly in mid-century. This involved
the presence of a congregation official to ensure that no other
flour was ground between the start and the finish of the blessed
kosher grain.

The business passed to Ralph's son David in 1862, who operated the
mill through the Civil War. There was a skirmish at the mill in
April 1862, during which a number of Vermont troops were drowned
when a mill race was opened, flooding the area.

By this time, the operations of the mill had become widely diversified.
This was common among such operations, which functioned as a center
point in rural life, normally combining the flour milling with saw
milling (David 2nd equipped the mill for lumber), cider presses

and various retail operations. The Lees also ran a blacksmith shop
and manufactured chair-rungs in the old gunstock addition.

After the Civil War, the personal attention of the Lee family was
replaced by tennant occupation: the associated farm, blacksmith
shop, store and post office as well as the mill itself, were run
by separate lessees in the 1870's. The property passed out of Lee
hands about 1886. It continued to operate under water power into
the 20th century. A flood destroyed the dam in the early 1900's,
and electric power was the replacement. Milling continued at
Jerusalem until 1961, when the last miller, John Bridges, died,
ending a chain that had been unbroken for nearly 190 years.
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Jérusalem Mill and outbuildings.
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Jerusalem Mill Road

CITY. TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
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STATE COUNTY
MAryland Harford
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
XEISTRICT XrusLic Xoccu PIED —_AGRICULTURE —_MUSEUM
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__OBJECT __IN PROCESS X YES: RESTRICTED . _GOVERNMENT  __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED __YES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
_NO _MILITARY __OTHER:
NAME
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.
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- K DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—_EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED X ONALTERED X _ORIGINAL SITE
__GOOD __RUINS __ALTERED __MOVED DATE
X rair __UNEXPOSED
HA-“‘B} DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This mill is an extremely massive structure, facing the Jerusalem Road

to it's north, and being located just west of the Baltimore County line

on the Gunpowder Falls. It is three and one-half stories high, the lower
story consisting of uncoursed stone walls, quoined at the corners and
covered by stucco on the western end. The upper floors are composed of
vertical board-and-batten frame. Overall, the mill measures six bays by
three and the windows are 6 X 6, some being covered over. The lower floor’s
bays have wood, stone or iron llntels and some of the southern side's doors
are pegged. A wide, three-panel entrahce is sited on the northern side of
ground level, while two entryways are sited on the southern embrasure.
There are four board-and-batten doors, one above the other, on each floor
the structure, on the eastern extreme. A most unusual feature is the con-
figuration of the dormers; two tiers of three gabled dormers each, with
two such sets located on either side of the roof. The roof ikself is a

tin gable-flank, with narrow eaves. A brick chimney is stationed on the
interior of the roof near the southeast corner, and a small tongue-like
extension of the roof extends to shelper the line of doorways on the
eastern wall. This projection probably held a block-and-tackle for the
hoisting of flour bags.

Interior- Information provided by Mark Edwards of Maryland Historical ..nst

Although much of the interior framing and woodwork has been altered in t...
Nineteenth Century, many architectural features still exist, such as the
two foot square white oak post located at the cormers of each floor of the
building. Skmllar champfered posts are also placeé& in intermediate posi-
tions ip the floor and serve to shoulder Jarge oak beams that span the
ceiling and support each upper floor. The. corner posts, mortised, tenoned
and pegged with large treenails, are for the most part/structurally sound.
Later Nineteenth Centwry mill equipment, notably the o sets of grinding
stones, ascwell as large storage bins and canvas conveyor belts, are also
of interest and importance. Unfortunately, the large sixteen foot dlameter
water wheel of the overshot type is no longer in place.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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- A SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE\-- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC __ARCHEULOGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE __RELIGION
—1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW __SCIENCE
—1500-1599 _-AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS _LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
__1600-1699 __ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION — MILITARY __SOCIALHUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART —ENGINEERING —MuUSIC . THEATER
-—-.1800-1899 _.COMMERCE —EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
—1900- _~COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)
—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The land that this mill is located up@n was called Jerusalem and was
patented in 1687. Another portion was known as Groom's Chance, also patente
in 1687. Nicholas Hempstead and John Valley were the original patentees of
the tract, and it was later rented from the lord proprietor by an Enoch
Spinks for an annual rent of twelve shillings nine pence. The firsbtmention
of the builder of the mill appears in 1772, when the Baltimore County Land
Records (AL E 383) ,indicate this tract to be owned by David Lee, who pur-
chased it from one Isaizh Linton. This is also the date that the mill was
said to be erected. The 178% Tax List shows David Lee as owning 50 acres
~< "Bond's Water Mills" and "the mill thereupon". Lee not only made a
:cessful living grinding flour, but also manufactured musket stocks
luring the War of Independence in a building attached to the rear of the
dresent mill, conducting this business despite his Quaker heritage. The
1798 Tax List for the Gunpowder Upper Hundred, which is not very detailed,
cites David Lee as owning two dwelling houses, seven outbuildings and 173
acres of land. The Lee mill was also demarcked on the 1795 Griffith as
well as on the 1797 Bond maps. Coubt Records also state that ig 1793, David
Lee had an apprentice under his charge, one twelve-year old named Russell
Davis. Davis was to be trained as a miller and a cooper. After nearly forty
years of profitable enterprise, David Lee left the mill to his son, Ralph
S., in 1811 and the son operated the concern until 1862. In 1850, under
the ownership of Ralph S. Lee, an industrial census was taken, indicating
that this mill was worth §I2,000, with two pairs of stones. In 1849, the
mill produced 2000 barrels of flour worth $12,000 and 2500 bushels of meal
worth $1200. In 1862, the mill passed into the hands of Ralph S. Lee's son,
David, and did a thriving business during the Civil War. It was especially
renown for the production of passover flour for the Jewish population of
Baltimore, an official being stationed there to supervise the procedure and
to bless the floue. The small stone building in the rear of the mill proper
was used as a cooper's shop for the manufacture of barrels for flour, and
the rear addition was used for the making of chair rungs and also contained
a cider press. A blacksmith shop across the road fabricated firearms during
FThe Civil War, and it was at about this time that David lee equipped the
Jerusalem mill for sawing lumber. After 114 years of ownership by four
generations of Lees, the business was conveyed to Ezra Fhillips, who oper-
2d the mill until 1891, when William A. Wilson took the reins and lasted
uatil 1905. Short stints by Joseph Weiner and Hymen M. Smotritsky led to
;mership under Frank V. Hurley (1907-1926). The mill waswater-powered

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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FJIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

See sepemmte sheet

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
FIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

These buildings are located on Gunpowder State Park property, bounded
on the west on both sides of Jerusalem Road by Little Gunpowder Falls.

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY
[E1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
Paul L. Penrod/ site surveyor
ORGANIZATION DATE
Maryland Historical Trust September 27, 1976
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
Shaw House, 21 State Circle 267=1212
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Annapolis Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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Jerusalem Mill- Historical Significance

going into the Twentieth Century, but a flood destroyed the dam and
electric turbines were installed. Harry Pyle operated the mill into the
1950's, until Arthur Wells acquired the property in 1961. The last millex
John Bridges, died in that year, and an industry that functioned for
nearly 190 years ceased. The mill has never been drastically altered
since it's conception, nor hawethke stone house or the blacksmith shop.

This group of structures would be ideally suited for an historical
interpretive site.

Description of Miller's House HA-434

Th&s structure is located just south of the Jerusalem Mill. It is a two-
storied building with embrasures of uncoursed stone with quoined corners.
A ramshackle clapboard addition is attamxhed to the south#rn exposure. The
dwelling is two bays across and one deep, with the windows having pegged
frames, but being covered over. There is a door centered on the northern
side of the building. The roof is a tin gable-~flank. On the western

extreme is an unusual chimney, where the ouside-end, which is stone,

curves into the wall as a buttress would, forming a flush-end brick stac}

Blacksmith's Shop HA&435

The blacksmith shop is located directly opposite the mill on Jerusalem
Road, a one-story structure of uncoursed rubble stone, quoined at the
corners. The walls are stucco-covered and the structure registers as
four bays by four, although there have been alterations to the walls.
There is an attic opening at either gable-end. The windows are 2 X 2's,
with wooden lintels overhead. Single doorways are located on both the
western and southern sides. The new asphalt roof is gable-flank, with a
stubby stone chimney centered on the interior ridgélime. The easterm side
of this building is built into the slope of the land.
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INVENTORY NO. 430 436 - ELECTION DISTRICT .

DATE : 2/ 24 / 76 TAX MAP NO. HA’LB‘S
REMODELING;/ Dr;;tic, moderate, minor PARCEL NO.

NAME OF PROPERTY: N LHUDPER ) Ll

LOCATION OF PROPERTY: S S F Jerunngm W) L7ne (URP e

DIRECTION DWELLING FACES: T o Yor 7y

NAME OF OWNER: 40, pEP JNTHer pEgwce s

ADDRESS :

STORIES: 1[0 ] 2[ ] 3[% 40 ] 5[] 6[ ] BAYS: fis
<
WINGS, ADDITIONS: ' S

WALL CONSTRUCTION:
7. 8 Larpests
[] FRAME: Bevel, clapboard, weatherboard, wood shingles, boara/& batten(type?)
[ ] BRICK: Bond type- common, English, Flemish. Sketch variants. o
[v] STONE: Bond type- rubble, ashlar (random or regular), quoins-plain, rusticated
[ ] Loe CORED  squcce o wARST 1D Lowe

&
WALL FEATURES: BELT COURSE, PILASTERS, OTHERS A/<h-
FOUNDATIONS: HIGH, LOW, BRICK, STONE AX7 T FIT 776
WATER TABLE: NONE; PLAIN, BEVELED, MOULDED BRICK

WINDOWS, TRIM, SHUTTERS: 1710 ] 2/l ] 6/6[ 4 9/6[ 1 9/9[ ] other[ ]
pegged[ ] nailed[ ] wide[ 1 narrow[ ]

originall replaced[v] 2ow ¢ 0O 157 Forw
3-mwee, wrl:l: oN MI)PE "] JomE LG

ENTRANCE, DOORS: LOCATION: # A-dumctr ¥ £ pyg Ast hove 776 T2r0 4 ML & LvietS

HARDWARE: original[ ] replaced| ]
FI}MIGHT, TRANSOM, SIDE LIGHTS, PLAIN

CORNICE, BARGE, EAVES: . DS (€
original[ ] replaced[ ] —Tmlf:\;me'ﬂuﬂ ol

/
ROOF: GABLE FRONT, GABLE FLANK, HIP, MANSAR‘D/ FLAT, DORMERS
MATERIAL:  wood shingles, slate, tinY asphalt original[ ] replaced[ ]

PORCHES:  SHAPE OF ROOF - shed[ ] hip[ ] gable[ ]

CHIMNEYS: NUMBER / BRICK[vf STONE[ ] CORBELED[ ] original[ ] rep]éced[]
LOCATION: BN SE pprevers

ARCHES :

. v LV GAE oHere papsen G5oN  EJIOC Lot E Sia 11y
Co BILOE L7un SBHE FOT LB HostTED
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.
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